LIBRARY OF CONGRESS/WASHINGTON

CATALOGING SERVICE BULLETIN

COLLECTIONS SERVICES

Number 62, Fall 1993 Editor: Robert M. Hiatt

CONTENTS	Page
GENERAL	
LC Expands Copy Cataloging Program	2
DESCRIPTIVE CATALOGING	
Cartographic Materials	10
SUBJECT CATALOGING	
Subdivision Simplification Progress	10
Changed or Cancelled Free-Floating Subdivisions	
(Weekly Lists 93-12—93-22)	12
Subject Headings for Spouses of Professional	
and Occupational Groups	14
Subject Headings of Current Interest	14
Revised LC Subject Headings	15
Subject Headings Replaced by Name Headings	39
LC CLASSIFICATION	
LC Classification Guidelines	40
PUBLICATIONS	
Cataloging Service Bulletin Index	40

Editorial address: Cataloging Policy and Support Office, Collections Services, Library of Congress, Washington, D.C. 20540-4305

Subscription address: Customer Support Unit, Cataloging Distribution Service, Library of Congress, Washington, D.C. 20541

Library of Congress Catalog Card Number: 78-51400 ISSN 0160-8029 Key title: Cataloging service bulletin



LC EXPANDS COPY CATALOGING PROGRAM

In 1991 the Library of Congress established the Enhanced Cataloging Division, the responsibility of which was, among others, to use copy cataloging as part of the Library's arrearage reduction program. Shortly thereafter, various experiments were done in some of the general cataloging divisions, usually under the rubric of URECA (Utilities as REsources in CAtaloging). Although the cataloging done in this mode made use of records created by other agencies, the final record was one that exemplified LC cataloging practice in all aspects.

The director for cataloging appointed a copy cataloging task force at the end of 1992 to study how the Library of Congress might make more effective use of copy cataloging. Units of the Library considered extensively the task force's report which was modified to reflect that consultation and issued in final form in July 1993. In general, the recommendations embodied in the report (see below) have been accepted as constituting the components of an expanded copy cataloging program to be used throughout the Cataloging Directorate. To this end the staff in the Enhanced Cataloging Division are being redeployed to the general cataloging divisions as part of this expanded effort. The records done under the program will embody a single, unified, standard set of data elements.

The report recommends using records prepared by other agencies and emphasizes using as much of each record as possible without necessarily changing it to exemplify LC practice as stated in the relevant documentation issued by LC. At the same time the report recommends that full authority work be done for the headings used in records done as copy cataloging, that each record contain an LC call number, and that each record contain at least one LC subject heading in those cases for which LC subject cataloging policy calls for subject headings.

The records done as copy cataloging are identified as follows:

- the 040 field is that of the source record with "DLC" or "DLC-R" in a +d subfield;
 - 2) a 042 field is present and contains "lccopycat";
 - 3) 008/39 (Cataloging Source) contains the value "d."

The general cataloging divisions are in the process of incorporating copy cataloging procedures in their workflows. The full text of the task force report is below.

REPORT OF THE TASK FORCE ON COPY CATALOGING

Summary

The Task Force recommends:

- That the Library use external source records (ExSRs) to meet arrearage-reduction goals and to keep up with current receipts under a formally constituted program of copy cataloging along the guidelines proposed in this report.
- 2) That the copy cataloging program adopted by the Library embody a single, unified, standard set of data element conventions and workflow, at least for book materials, and that the program replace all previous programs/experiments using ExSRs for some form of copy cataloging.

- 3) That although the primary purpose of the program is to increase cataloging output, an adjunct consideration is the chance to provide career enhancing opportunities, especially for library technician series employees.
- 4) That the program focus on accepting as much as possible in the ExSR without necessarily reflecting LC practice in all aspects, and that this condition continue to be reflected by the code "lccopycat" in an 042 field.
 - 5) That the program have as its basis the continuing fundamental objectives of
- a) insuring identification of particular items and distinguishing editions one from another;
- b) insuring that headings fit into the currently existing heading structure of the catalog and that the necessary authority checking and authority work be done to make this so.
- 6) That a record done under the program contain both an LC call number and at least one LC subject heading in those cases for which LC subject cataloging policy calls for subject headings. If, however, no ExSR containing an LC call number and at least one LC subject heading is available for an item that is designated for MLC, catalog the item according to MLC guidelines.

Charge/Membership

The Task Force on Copy Cataloging was set up in December 1992 as an offshoot of the Copy Cataloging for Current Receipts Committee that itself had been formed in November 1992. The task force was charged with investigating alternatives for implementing copy cataloging operations in the Cataloging Directorate in addition to those already in place in the Enhanced Cataloging Division. The group was asked to make recommendations concerning the searching and use of external source records (ExSRs) from bibliographic utilities (e.g., OCLC, RLIN) and other sources. Workflow issues and staffing to be involved in copy cataloging were also matters for the task force's consideration.

The scope of the charge changed somewhat with the decision to dismantle the Enhanced Cataloging Division (ECD) and reassign staff to other areas in the Cataloging Directorate. The task force worked under the assumption that most of the ECD staff involved in copy cataloging activities would be placed in the cataloging divisions with work responsibilities similar to those they performed in ECD.

The members of the task force included Regene Ross (History and Literature Cataloging Division, chair), Patrick Bernard (ECD), Beth Davis-Brown (Social Sciences Cataloging Division), Lynn El-Hoshy (Cataloging Policy and Support Office), Kay Guiles (Cataloging Policy and Support Office), Sue Hayduchok (Acquisitions Bibliographic Support Project), Andrew Lisowski (Automation Planning and Liaison Office), Paul Maher (Regional and Cooperative Cataloging Division), Jim McGovern (Social Sciences Cataloging Division), and Jerry Wager (Social Sciences Cataloging Division).

Methodology

In order to fulfill its charge the task force determined it appropriate to conduct a review called a "Resource Study" that would analyze copy obtained from OCLC and compare it with LC original cataloging for the same item. This would provide the group with a greater understanding of the cataloging quality available, the variations likely to occur, and the impact that OCLC copy would have on the reliability and integrity of LC's catalog given various levels of acceptance, review, and adaptation.

1) Context. The current emphasis upon increased cataloging productivity combined with budgetary restraints is not a new one. In the past, the Library has used various programs to achieve these goals, e.g., the "priority 4" program of the 1950's and the "limited cataloging" program of that same era. More recently there has been minimal level cataloging, "enhanced" minimal level cataloging, and "speed" cataloging as applied to subject practice. The focus of these programs was usually to limit in some way the data elements given in a catalog record or to modify the manner in which they were assigned. The programs themselves were essentially inward looking.

Today, technological developments and a changing cataloging environment make it possible to look outward to the use of ExSRs to bolster cataloging productivity. There is a shift in emphasis from an LC-oriented environment to one more nearly collegial in aspect. There is a shift in focus from a record's having a particular orientation to one having a more generalized one—records are created by various agencies and become candidates for use by other agencies. Thus the use of ExSRs is the present-day counterpart to previous efforts at improving cataloging productivity, as well as the means of supplanting the unsatisfactory aspects of minimal level cataloging. That approach, however, can be held in reserve for use as needed in any last-ditch efforts in the struggle to meet arrearage-reduction goals.

2) General approach. The task force recommends relying on ExSRs to the extent available under a formally constituted program of copy cataloging along the guidelines proposed in this report. But whatever program is adopted at LC, the task force recommends that it embody a single, unified, standard methodology and workflow (including acquisitions staff searching and using ExSRs at the earliest point in the acquisition/cataloging workflow), at least as applied to book materials. The task force further recommends that such a program replace all previous programs/experiments using ExSRs such as the Enhanced Cataloging Division effort and URECA (Utilities as Resources in Cataloging).

The task force further recommends that

- copy cataloging be treated as a standard activity and incorporated into the menu of other activities in support of the bibliographic control system;
- 2) The Cataloging Policy and Support Office manage the resolution of policy issues relating to copy cataloging and that it be advised by a small group of representatives from units doing copy cataloging in resolving issues and making recommendations to management; it is understood that final policy decisions are under the aegis of the Director for Cataloging and the Cataloging Management Team;
- that documentation in support of copy cataloging be incorporated in, and becomes part of, the standard documentation structure for cataloging activities.

Although the primary purpose of the new program is to increase cataloging output, an adjunct consideration is the chance to provide career enhancing opportunities, especially for library technician series employees. To that end the task force recommends the basis for a staffing configuration (see paragraph 4). While the task force makes staffing recommendations, it also suggests that the "copy cataloging-construct," namely, the set of data element conventions applicable to this activity, be seen as a methodology that may be enlisted by teams to meet arrearage-reduction efforts, regardless of the particular mix of staff immediately available.

In using ExSRs, the task force recommends a shift in approach—a shift to accepting what is in the ExSR instead of focusing on changing it to reflect LC practice in all aspects. The identifying characteristics of such records will be as follows:

FFD 29 (cataloging source) = d
040 as in imported record with \(\ddot\)d = DLC or DLC-R
042 field = lccopycat
For records imported from OCLC, it will be necessary to include a
035 field containing the OCLC control number until that step can be supplanted by load software.

These data elements reflect the conventions used initially to identify the work done by the Enhanced Cataloging Division, and thus they have the advantage of providing continuity to the users of records issued by LC. The presence of the code in the 042 field indicates use of an ExSR by LC with minimal change, if any, and that because of this, there is no guarantee that the record reflects LC documentation and practice in all aspects. Such identification makes it easier for LC staff to accept this approach. In addition, it provides a basis on which external users of the records can make decisions, as needed, on the treatment of these records in their environment.

Even as the task force has been considering its recommendations, the pressures to meet arrearage-reduction goals have increased. If they are to be met, copy cataloging must necessarily be seen as a production-oriented activity requiring the full cooperation of all staff engaged in this enterprise regardless of the nature of their contribution. This entails a substantial change in mind-set when doing copy cataloging, particularly on the part of experienced staff who are accustomed to a much different approach.

- 3) Premises. The premises for the approach we recommend are as follows:
- a) accept what is present in the ExSR to the extent possible within the guidelines spelled out in this report, particularly in the sections on specific recommendations;
- b) in general, do not delete information unless inaccurate, egregiously misleading, or specified for deletion in these recommendations; limit changes, to the extent possible, to those that relate to accuracy, substance, or retrievability, *not* style;
- c) focus on a set of basic data elements, spelled out in the specific recommendations on the descriptive aspect:
- (1) to insure identification of an item both from an internal and external perspective;
- (2) to prevent ambiguity, i.e., with a citation to a work or with an item in hand, can one look at a record and judge whether it fits the particular citation/item; this is important internally because of the number of staff at different levels engaged in searching and making decisions regarding recommending or acquiring material or deciding whether items in hand duplicate items already in the collections;
- d) take the necessary steps to insure that the headings present in ExSRs fit in to the currently existing heading structure of the catalog; do the necessary authority checking and authority work to make this so.

The task force believes that preserving the integrity of the heading structure is of vital importance, so important, in fact, that other desirable goals should be made subordinate to it—thus the emphasis upon accepting what is in the record, even at the cost of reduced access, but preserving the integrity of the access that remains in the ExSR. By this means the task force hopes to meet the compelling needs of near-term arrearage reduction without sacrificing the future integrity of the heading structure. There will no doubt come a day when the headings in the bibliographic records can be governed through an automated mechanism involving authority records, but the task force does not see how

this can be accomplished if, in the meantime, the Library has not maintained consistent use of headings in the bibliographic records themselves. This argument in no way lessens concerns that the Library insures, to the extent possible, the integrity of searching in the catalog in terms of predictability and comprehensiveness of results.

e) Staffing configuration. The task force recommends that copy cataloging be completed with a mixture of staff in various positions. The basis of these recommendations is a model in which less experienced staff work in an environment in which they have access to experienced staff. This makes it possible to take advantage of the team approach and the collegiality that method emphasizes. It provides a setting within which library technicians can take advantage of the knowledge and advice of experienced cataloging staff.

Ideally the staffing configuration would involve technicians' searching, identifying, and importing copy at the earliest possible stage of the processing. Senior cataloging technicians in the cataloging divisions would examine the imported records with item in hand to insure that the requirements for the various data elements detailed in this report's recommendations for both the descriptive and subject aspects are met. If data elements are lacking or problematic, the cataloging technicians would confer with catalogers to obtain the needed data and/or resolve the problem. If authority work for the access points required in the copy cataloging record is needed, the cataloging technician would refer the item to an appropriate cataloger to create or modify the authority records.

Those familiar with bibliographic data know that, in addition to formal training, it is the day-to-day encounter with books and other materials, with all the myriad characteristics of individual items, that is the best means of attaining the skills needed to gradually lead one to be able to distinguish between the routine situations and those that are problematic. As technicians gain experience, it is anticipated that the need for consultation and referral can be reduced so that technicians can handle much of the work on an ordinary basis, with the need to refer/consult limited only to the genuinely problematic cases.

The task force recognizes that the recommended mixture of staff will not always be available in all situations to perform copy cataloging work. In those instances, keeping the primary goal of arrearage reduction and timely handling of materials in mind, the cataloging divisions may utilize the skills and experience of other available and qualified staff to complete this work. This is in no way a downgrading of staff; instead, it is a necessary means of addressing crucial arrearage goals. As such, it is intended as a temporary solution until a balance can be attained.

f) Special aspects. Whatever the character of the new program, the task force recommends that it be publicized widely so that current and future users of LC bibliographic services will be apprised of the nature of LC copy cataloging and any impact it may have on them.

Since the task force anticipates substantial gains in productivity, particularly after the installation of load software toward the end of this year that will considerably simplify current procedures, it also recommends publicity and coordination with other internal units that themselves may be impacted, e.g., such activities as binding/labeling, collections management.

The recommendations below with respect to the descriptive aspect of cataloging are stated in a general way. Actual workflow and other procedures are not spelled out in detail, since they may vary, depending upon a particular situation. The task force sees these as the basis both for a more formally structured program and also a flexible means for teams to address specific arrearage-reduction goals as the need arises.

For the descriptive aspect, the task force recommends the following guidelines. In particular, it recommends concentrating on the title and statement of responsibility area (245), the edition area (250 \pm a), the publication, distribution, etc., area (260), and the extent portion of the physical description area (300 \pm a) to insure accuracy for access and identification.

- 1) Choice of main entry. Accept unless egregiously misleading.
- 2) IXX. Apply standard LC practice, including any needed authority work.
- 3) 240. Apply standard LC practice, including any needed authority work.
- 4) 245. Insure that the title proper (‡a subfield), other title information (‡b subfield), and statement of responsibility (‡c subfield) are transcribed accurately (with respect to substance but not necessarily style) from the chief source of the item in hand. For issues that are a matter of judgment, accept what is in the ExSR unless egregiously misleading. Teams may exercise discretion in treating issues that are particularly characteristic of the materials they catalog. For JACKPHY materials, limit counterpart vernacular data to the core fields; do not add vernacular data for other fields but retain if present.
- 5) 250. Insure that what is present is transcribed accurately from the chief source of the item in hand. Add an edition area (usually \(\pm \) subfield only) when not present but appropriate. Otherwise, accept what is present unless egregiously misleading.
- 6) 260. To the extent possible, accept what is present, e.g., the particular larger geographic units that have been transcribed in association with a place. When a U.S. place, publisher, or distributor is given in the chief source, insure that such U.S. place, publisher, or distributor is represented in the field and according to the configuration of data elements that LC practice calls for in the particular situation. Insure that any prime date reflects the item accurately; as long as that is true, retain other dates given even though they would not be given according to LC practice, e.g., a publication date followed by a copyright date.
- 7) 300. Insure that the extent statement (‡a subfield) accurately reflects the item in hand. Accept statements of pages/leaves, illustration terms, and size.
- 8) 4XX/8XX. Insure that series are given and agree with LC practice regarding transcription (4XX), authoritativeness (4XX/8XX), analysis, classification, tracing, and form of numbering; do any needed authority work to accomplish this.
- 9) 5XX. Accept the notes that are present and in the form given unless egregiously misleading; do not add any. If a 520 field is present, retain it regardless of whether the material is intended for children or not.
- 10) 020. Insure that an ISBN that is available in the item in hand is also present in the catalog record. If lacking, add it (but only the one for the item in hand). Otherwise, accept the ISBN or ISBNs given; check that they have been transcribed accurately and make changes accordingly to the number. Accept any qualifiers to ISBNs that are present unless egregiously misleading. Accept prices that are present and in the form given, but do not

- 11) 7XX. To the extent possible, accept the complement given. Do not delete any 7XX field unless egregiously misleading. Search the 700-730 added entries and apply standard LC practice, including any needed authority work. Insure that the 7XX complement includes basic access.
- 041. Accept if present; do not change unless egregiously misleading; do not add.
- 13) 008. Check the following fixed field bytes for correct coding: 6 (date type), 7-10 (date 1), 11-14 (date 2), 15-17 (place of publication code), 35-37 (language), 38 (modified record), and 39 (cataloging source; value "d" in all cases of copy cataloging). Check also leader byte 18 (descriptive cataloging form) for the correct coding. Assign, as appropriate, any of these codes/values that are lacking. With respect to fixed fields bytes 18-21 (illustration), 23 (form of item), 28 (government publication), 30 (festschrift), 31 (index): accept if present; do not change unless egregiously misleading; do not add. (Note that the APIF and BOOKSM input/update systems generate the appropriate codes for illustrations (FFD 24) based on data in the 300 field.)

Recommendations (Subject Aspect)

For the subject aspect, the task force strongly recommends that the completed record contain both an LC call number and at least one LC subject heading in those cases for which LC subject cataloging policy calls for subject headings. If LC subject headings are present but the policy does not call for them, retain them unless egregiously misleading. Actual workflow and other procedures are not spelled out in detail, since they may vary, depending upon a particular situation.

- 1) 6XX. Validate the authority of all subject headings and subdivisions. Verify that each heading has been constructed according to LC practice, i.e., that the string is formulated correctly. If the headings, subdivisions, and construction cannot be validated, if the appropriateness of the headings is questionable, or if an egregious error is present, resolve the problem and do any needed authority work. If new headings or subdivisions are needed, development work for such is at the discretion of the team.
- 2) Class number. Check the ExSR for an LC-like class number (if more than one is present, choose one as a candidate LC call number). Check the candidate class number to insure that it is a valid number and that it reflects the complement of subject headings present in the ExSR. Also check the candidate class number against the shelflist and adjust it as needed to insure that no conflict exists. If the ExSR lacks an LC-like class number, assign one. If the number present in the ExSR cannot be validated, resolve the problem.

If an LC-like class number in an ExSR does not reflect the number for material LC classifies as a collection (indicated in a series authority record), use the number from the authority record. Do not provide an alternate number in a repeated ‡a subfield in the 050 field.

If the call number for topical bibliographies in subjects other than law and music is not a Z number, determine and use the correct Z number. Do not provide an alternate number in a repeated $\pm a$ subfield in the 050 field.

Note that when an LC-like class number is in an ExSR but it is not chosen as the LC call number, its disposition is as follows: retain 055 (National Library of Canada number), 060 (National Library of Medicine number), and 070 (National Agricultural Library number) fields as a matter of course (format integration Phase 2 practice); do not retain 09X fields (local call numbers) in a final record.

- 3) 043. Accept if present; do not change unless egregiously misleading; do not add.
- 4) 008. With respect to fixed field bytes 22 (target audience), 26 (form of contents), 29 (conference publication), 33 (fiction), and 34 (biography): accept if present; do not change unless egregiously misleading; do not add.
- 5) 6XX other than LC. Retain non-LC subject headings (identified by the value in the second indicator position of 6XX fields) except for those assigned values 5-7 (5 = Canadian Subject Headings; 6 = Répertoire des vedettes-matière; $7 = Source specified in subfield <math>\pm 2$).

Recommendations (Other Aspects)

1) 082. A 082 field does not get copied to the in-process file, although it may be present in the ExSR.

Forward items to the Decimal Classification Division (DEWEY) according to its current guidelines (the item is in language scope for DEWEY and the item has been published 1970 to date).

- 2) 040. Retain the symbols of the cataloging and transcribing agency (subfields +a and +c respectively); insure that a subfield +d containing "DLC" or "DLC-R" is the last subfield in the field.
 - 3) 042. Add an 042 that contains the code "lccopycat."

042 +a+lccopycat

035. For records imported from OCLC, add the OCLC control number in a 035 field.

035 +a+(OCoLC)12345678

Do not include the prefix "ocm" that is assigned as a pseudo-LCCN for the interim period in which records are first loaded.

Note that all the actions relating to the data elements in this section of the recommendations will be performed by the LC load software once that software is installed.

DESCRIPTIVE CATALOGING

CARTOGRAPHIC MATERIALS

Announcing a change to the Library of Congress policy statement in Cartographic Materials: A Manual of Interpretation for AACR2 for rule 4C7 (page 70):

4C7 Optionally, add the full address of a publisher, distributor, etc., to the name of the place. Enclose such an addition in parentheses. Do not add the full address for major trade publishers. (1.4C7)

¹Second indicator value 7 and subfield ±2 will not be defined in LC's input/update systems until Phase 3 of LC's format integration implementation is completed.

□ POLICIES

Library of Congress

The option is not applied. LC will consistently transcribe full name and address information for publishers and distributors of cartographic materials in a separate field of the machine-readable record whenever such information appears on the item or accompanying material.

changed to

□POLICIES

Library of Congress
The option is not applied.

SUBJECT CATALOGING

SUBDIVISION SIMPLIFICATION PROGRESS

Since the Subject Subdivisions Conference took place at Airlie House, Virginia, in May 1991, progress continues to be made in simplifying subdivisions in the Library of Congress Subject Headings system. On Weekly Lists 93-12 through 93-22, changes were made in the following areas:

Recommendation #1. Toward achieving the recommended standard order of [topic]-[place]-[chronology]-[form] in LC subject heading strings, new topical subdivisions for which geographic orientation is logical are now established with the designation (May Subd Geog). On a case-by-case basis, subdivisions not previously divided by place are being authorized for geographic subdivision. Twenty-eight subdivisions not previously divided by place, including eighteen free-floating subdivisions listed below, were authorized for geographic subdivision during this period. In early June, it was determined that approximately twenty-eight percent of free-floating subdivisions for which geographic orientation is possible are so authorized. To accelerate progress in shifting from the current order of [topic]-[place]-[topic] to the recommended order of [topic]-[topic]-[place], a systematic effort to review free-floating and non free-floating subdivisions alphabetically and add (May Subd Geog) was begun.

Recommendation #3. Toward implementing the recommendation that chronological subdivisions under topical headings should related to the coverage of the contents of the item rather than its date of issue, a project continues to cancel period subdivisions after headings of the type [place]-Description and travel in favor of using [place]-Description and travel, or [place]-Description and travel-Early works to 1800 for works published prior to that date. Period subdivisions were cancelled after -Description and travel under headings for seventy-seven regions and countries, including Canada, France, and Great Britain.

Recommendation #6. During this period, progress in simplifying subdivisions was made in the following areas:

 Cancellation of subdivisions that represent the same or similar concepts in different forms.

The subdivision -Bacteriology, which was established under various headings, was cancelled and replaced by the subdivision -Microbiology.

The subdivision -Drill manuals, used under headings for military services, was replaced by use of the general free-floating subdivision -Handbooks, manuals, etc. under an existing subdivision -Drill and tactics, used under military services.

The subdivision -Effect of water temperature on, used under individual animals and groups of animals, was cancelled in favor of the subdivision -Effect of temperature on, used under individual plants and groups of plants.

The subdivision -Translating services, free-floating under topical headings for works on translating services in those topics, was cancelled in favor of use of the existing subdivision -Translating.

2) Elimination of exceptional practices.

Two subdivisions on the list of free-floating subdivisions used under names of places (H 1140) were discontinued in favor of dividing the corresponding main headings by place. The latter represents the standard order for topical headings.

-Popular culture

-Queens

Three subdivisions on the list of free-floating suvdivisions used under names of bodies of water (H 1145.5) were cancelled in favor of dividing the corresponding main headings by place.

-Temperature

(replaced by Water temperature-[place])

-Water diversion

-Water level

(replaced by Water levels-[place])

3) Subdivisions replaced by phrase headings:

The subdivision -Children, established under the headings Governors and Presidents, was cancelled and replaced by the headings Children of governors and Children of presidents.

The subdivision -Library orientation, established under headings for classes of persons, was cancelled and replaced by phrase headings of the type Library orientation for college students, Library orientation for school children, etc.

Some subdivisions established under the heading Railroads were cancelled and replaced by phrase headings, e.g. Railroads-Pullman cars became Pullman cars, Railroads-Roundhouses became Roundhouses (Railroads), and Railroads-Sidings became Railroad sidings.

As part of a project to change the heading Postage-stamps to Postage stamps, the free-floating construction Postage-stamps-Topics-[name of topic] was discontinued and replaced with a new free-floating subdivision -On postage stamps, to be used under personal names, corporate bodies, uniform titles, and names of places. Phrase headings for other topics depicted on postage stamps are being established, e.g. Birds on postage stamps, Explorers on postage stamps, Monuments on postage stamps, etc.

4) Subdivisions no longer needed:

The subdivision -Artificers' handbooks, established under the pattern heading United States. Navy, and therefore authorized for use under other military services, was cancelled and replaced by use of the free-floating subdivision -Handbooks, manuals, etc. under the name of the military service combined with the heading Naval

The subdivision -Deportations from [region or country], which was free-floating under individual wars, was discontinued as a free-floating subdivision. It will be established where needed.

The subdivision -Exploring expeditions, which was used under names of countries, cities, etc., for works on expeditions sent from that place for purposes of exploration, was cancelled and replaced with the existing heading Discoveries in geography, which may be divided by the nationality carrying out the exploration, e.g. Discoveries in geography-American, Discoveries in geography-Spanish, etc., or the subdivision -Discovery and exploration, which is used under names of places and may be further subdivided by the nationality of the explorers or country supporting the exploration, e.g. America-Discovery and exploration-Spanish.

As previously announced, a list of changed or cancelled free-floating subdivisions is being published quarterly in response to requests for an easily used list for ready reference. The list below covers free-floating subdivisions that were changed or cancelled on Weekly Lists 93-12 through 93-22.

CHANGED OR CANCELLED FREE-FLOATING SUBDIVISIONS (Weekly Lists 93-12-93-22)

Subdivision	Free-floating list in SCM	Change or replacement
-Acupuncture	Н 1164	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Artificers' handbooks	Н 1159	[name of military service]— Handbooks, manuals, etc.
		Naval artificers- Handbooks, manuals,
the convey to ambition and	dear all 1d I rough	etc.
-Betting	H 1188.5	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Chemotherapy	H 1150	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Cultures and culture media	H 1164	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Deportations from []	Н 1200	No longer free-floating; established where needed
-Diagnostic use	H 1149	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Diseases-Chemotherapy	H 1147	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
or year the test belieful server	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Drill manuals	Н 1159	-Drill and tactics- Handbooks, manuals, etc.
-Effect of water temperature on	H 1147	-Effect of temperature on
-Etching	H 1158	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Exploring expeditions	Н 1140	Discoveries in geography— French, [Spanish, etc.] and/or[place]–Discovery and exploration–
		American, [Belgian, Dutch, etc.]
-Feed utilization efficiency	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Germplasm resources-	H 1147	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
Microbiology	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Housing-Disinfection	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)

-Housing-Environmental	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
engineering		
-Hypertrophy	H 1164	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Inspection	H 1095	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1180	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1195	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Kirghiz authors	H 1156	-Kyrgyz authors
-Massage	H 1164	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Microbiology	H 1147	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1148	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1150	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1164	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1180	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Popular culture	H 1140	Popular culture (May Subd Geog)
-Queens	H 1140	Queens (May Subd Geog)
-Radionuclide imaging	H 1150	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
	H 1164	
-Temperature	H 1145.5	Water temperature (May Subd Geog)
-Toxicity testing	H 1149	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Translating services		-Translating [under topical headings for works on translating services in those topics]
-Utilization	H 1180	ADD: (May Subd Geog)
-Water diversion	H 1145.5	Water diversion (May Subd
-Water level	Н 1145.5	Geog) Water levels (May Subd
11 1101 10101	and the	Geog)

SUBJECT HEADINGS FOR SPOUSES OF PROFESSIONAL AND OCCUPATIONAL GROUPS

The Cataloging Policy and Support Office has recently taken steps to correct a subtle and unintended bias present in *Library of Congress Subject Headings*. This bias has its source in society itself, and is reflected in the literature acquired and cataloged by the Library of Congress. It is discussed at length in an article by Margaret N. Rogers in the April 1993 issue of Library Resources and Technical Services entitled "Are We On Equal Terms Yet? Subject Headings Concerning Women in *LCSH*, 1975-1991." In the article, Ms. Rogers refers to the "abundance of '[x]'s wives' headings in *LCSH* ... reflecting the assumption that in the working world men are the norm."

In evaluating this situation, CPSO considered the possibility of establishing "...'s husbands" and "...'s spouses" headings corresponding with the "...'s wives" headings, so as not to imply that all members of the designated occupations and professions are men. As a more practical solution, CPSO chose instead to cancel the headings for wives and in each case to establish the single, inclusive, and non-gender-specific heading, "...'s spouses." Although this results in a slight loss of specificity, it avoids the need to have three headings where one will do.

These changes appear on weekly lists 30 and 31, 1993, and are reflected in the third quarter issues of *CDMARC Subjects* and *LCSH* on microfiche, as well as in the printed 17th edition of *LCSH*, to be published in 1994.

A revision of the Subject Cataloging Manual: Subject Headings, H 1330, Biography, reflecting these changes, will be included in 1993 Update Number 2 to be distributed to subscribers in the autumn of this year.

SUBJECT HEADINGS OF CURRENT INTEREST

Weekly Lists 20-32, 1993

1993 March on Washington for Lesbian, Gay and Bi Equal Rights and Liberation, Washington, D.C., 1993

Aerospace planes (May Subd Geog)

AIDS activists (May Subd Geog)

Antarctic Treaty system

Artist couples (May Subd Geog)

Artistic collaboration (May Subd Geog)

Audiobooks (May Subd Geog)

Beach nourishment (May Subd Geog)

Bisexual men (May Subd Geog)

Bisexual women (May Subd Geog)

Bisexuals (May Subd Geog)

Body piercing (May Subd Geog)

Child sexual abuse by clergy (May Subd Geog)

Children of AIDs patients (May Subd Geog)

Craft shops (May Subd Geog)

Dance marathons (May Subd Geog)

Discoveries in science (May Subd Geog)

Dragsters (May Subd Geog)

Drowsiness (May Subd Geog)

Environmental economics (May Subd Geog)

Environmental responsibility (May Subd Geog)

Environmentalism (May Subd Geog)

Eurocentrism (May Subd Geog)

Feminist music (May Subd Geog)

Fuel switching (May Subd Geog)

Funny cars (May Subd Geog)

G.I. Joe figures (May Subd Geog)

Gay activists (May Subd Geog)

Gay teachers (May Subd Geog)

Gummy bears (May Subd Geog)

Hate speech (May Subd Geog)

Herb stores (May Subd Geog)

Heterosexual men (May Subd Geog)

Heterosexual teachers (May Subd Geog)

Heterosexual women (May Subd Geog)

Heterosexuals (May Subd Geog)

Hispanic American banks (May Subd Geog)

Holistic veterinary medicine (May Subd Geog)

Ice (Drug) (May Subd Geog)

Lesbian music (May Subd Geog)

Lesbian teenagers (May Subd Geog)

Microspacecraft (May Subd Geog)

Mute persons (May Subd Geog)

Narcissistic injuries (May Subd Geog)

Overpopulation

Pinot noir (Wine) (May Subd Geog)

Referred pain (May Subd Geog) Remanufacturing (May Subd Geog) Saber-toothed tigers (May Subd Geog) Santa dolls (May Subd Geog) Shark cartilage (May Subd Geog) Stalking (May Subd Geog) Stopwatches (May Subd Geog) Trading cards (May Subd Geog) Underground homeless persons (May Subd Geog) Video recordings for the visually handicapped (May Subd Geog) Voguing (Dance) (May Subd Geog) Waco Branch Davidian Disaster, Tex., 1993 Wedding attendants (May Subd Geog) Wedding stationery (May Subd Geog) Whale sounds (May Subd Geog) Women's bookstores (May Subd Geog) Women's music (May Subd Geog) World music

REVISED LC SUBJECT HEADINGS

The list below comprises headings that were changed or cancelled on weekly lists 12-22, 1993.

	A STATE OF THE STA	May
	of guarante	Subd
Cancelled Heading Replacement	Heading	Geog
'Abbās, Tall (Egypt)	'Abbās, Tall (Iraq)	NO
Abkhazskaia A.S.S.R. (Georgian s.S.R.)-History	Abkhaziia (Georgia)-History	NO
Abkhazskaia A.S.S.R. (Georgian s.S.R.)-Revolution of 1905	Abkhaziia (Georgia)-History	NO
Abkhazskaia A.S.S.R. (Georgian S.S.R.)-Revolution of 1905	Georgia (Republic)-History- Revolution, 1905-1907	NO
Administrative manuals	Management-Handbooks, manuals, etc.	NO
Advertising-Hotels, taverns, etc.	Advertising-Hotels	YES
Advertising, Comparison	Comparison advertising	YES
Africa-Description and travel-To 1900	Africa-Description and travel	NO
Africa-Description and travel-1901-1950	Africa-Description and travel	NO
Africa-Description and travel-1951-1976	Africa-Description and travel	NO
Africa-Description and travel-1977-	Africa-Description and travel	NO
Africa, North-Description and travel-To 1900	Africa, North-Description and travel	NO
Africa, North-Description and travel-1901-1950	Africa, North-Description and travel	NO
Africa, North-Description and travel-1951-	Africa, North-Description and travel	NO
Africa, West-Description and travel-To 1850	Africa, West-Description and travel	NO

Africa, West-Description and travel-1851-1950	Africa, West-Description and travel	NO
Africa, West-Description	Africa, West-Description	NO
and travel-1951-1980	and travel	
Africa, West-Description and travel-1981-	Africa, West-Description and travel	NO
Airlines-Baggage	Airports-Baggage handling	YES
Alaska-Description and	Alaska-Description and	NO
travel-To 1867	travel	he de grebal I
Alaska-Description and	Alaska-Description and	NO
travel-1867-1896		
Alaska-Description and	Alaska-Description and	NO
travel-1896-1959	travel	
Alaska-Description and	Alaska-Description and	NO
travel-1959-1980	travel	
Alaska-Description and	Alaska-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Albania-Description and	Albania-Description and	NO
travel-1971-	travel	
Algae-Toxicology	Toxic algae-Toxicology	YES
Alpine fauna	Mountain fauna	YES
Alpine flora	Mountain plants	YES
Aneroid barometer	Aneroid barometers	YES
Animals-Diseases-	Veterinary chemotherapy	YES
Chemotherapy	vetermary enemoticiapy	1123
Animals-Diseases-	Veterinary therapeutics	YES
Treatment		
Anolis	Anoles	YES
Anolis carolinensis	Green anole	YES
Aquatic microbiology	Water-Microbiology	YES
Art, Kirghiz	Art, Kyrgyz	YES
Art metal-work, Primitive	Art metal-work	YES
Arts, Kirghiz	Arts, Kyrgyz	YES
Assiniboin dialect	Assiniboine dialect	YES
Assiniboin Indians	Assiniboine Indians	NO
Assiniboin Indians-	Assiniboine Indians-	NO
Reservations	Reservations	1.0
Australia-Description and	Australia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1850	travel	140
Australia-Description and	Australia-Description and	NO
travel-1851-1900	travel	NO
Australia-Description and		NO
travel-1901-1950	Australia-Description and travel	NO
		NO
Australia-Description and	Australia-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	Africa-Deser
Australia-Description and	Australia-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Authors, Kirghiz	Authors, Kyrgyz	YES
Bages (Spain)	Bages Region (Spain)	NO
Barometer	Barometers	YES
Bashkir language-Dialects- Eastern	Kuvakan dialect	YES
Bashkirskaia A.S.S.R.	Bashkortostan (Russia)	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)	CHARLES TO STATE	
Bashkirskaia A.S.S.R.	Bashkortostan (Russia)-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History	History	
- ************************************	•	

Bashkirskaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)-History- Uprising, 1755	Bashkortostan (Russia)- History-Uprising, 1755	NO
Battle Creek (Calif.)	Battle Creek (Shasta County, Calif.)	NO
Beaver Creek (Ky.)	Beavery Creek (McCreary County, Ky.)	NO
Belgium-Description and travel-1945-1970	Belgium-Description and travel	NO
Belgium-Description and travel-1971-	Belgium-Description and travel	NO
Bicknell's thrush	Gray-cheeked thrush	YES
Birds, Attracting of	Bird attracting	YES
Boats, Primitive	Boats and boating	YES
Boats, Primitive-Hawaii	Boats and boating-Hawaii	
Bog flora	Bog plants	YES
Bookplates, Kirghiz	Bookplates, Kyrgyz	YES
	Bosnia and Hercegovina-	NO
Bosnia and Hercegovina- Description and travel-To	Description and travel	NO
1918	Altile toni	
Bosnia and Hercegovina-	Bosnia and Hercegovina-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
Bosnia and Hercegovina-	Bosnia and Hercegovina-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	NO
Boulder River (Mont.)	Boulder River (Sweet Grass	NO
	County, Mont.)	
Boxes, Ornamental	Ornamental boxes	YES
Brackish water flora	Brackish water plants	YES
Brazil-Description and travel-To 1900	Brazil-Description and travel	NO
Brazil-Description and	Brazil-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1950	travel	
Brazil-Description and	Brazil-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
Brazil-Description and travel-1981-	Brazil-Description and travel	NO
Brazil-History-1954-	Brazil-History-1954-1964	NO
Brazil-History-1954-	Brazil-History-1964-1985	NO
Brazil-History-1954-	Brazil-History-1985-	NO
Bread-Bacteriology	Bread-Microbiology	YES
Buginese language	Bugis language	YES
Bulgaria-Description and travel-1970-	Bulgaria-Description and travel	NO
Business information services- Utilization	Business information services— Use studies	NO
Business students-Library orientation	Library orientation for business students	YES
California-Description and travel-To 1848	California-Description and	NO
California-Description and travel-1848-1869	California-Description and travel	NO
California-Description and travel-1869-1950	California-Description and travel	NO
California-Description and travel-1951-1980	California-Description and travel	NO

California-Description and	California-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Cambodia-Description and	Cambodia-Description and	NO
travel-1975-	travel	
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-To 1763	travel-Early works to 1800	
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-To 1763	travel	
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-1763-1867	travel-Early works to 1800	
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-1763-1867	travel	110
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-1867-1950	travel	NO
		NO
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	110
Canada-Description and	Canada-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	L Della Milleria
Canal aqueducts-Temperature	Water temperature	YES
Canal flora	Canal plants	YES
Cartography, Primitive	Cartography	YES
Catalogs, Commercial	Commercial catalogs	YES
Cerrado flora	Cerrado plants	YES
Chaplains, Military-Wives	Military chaplains' wives	YES
Cheese-Bacteriology	Cheese-Microbiology	YES
Children's literature, Kirghiz	Children's literature, Kyrgyz	YES
China-Description and	China-Description and	NO
travel-To 1900	travel	
China-Description and	China-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1948	travel	
China-Description and	China-Description and	NO
travel-1949-1975	travel	1.0
China-Description and	China-Description and	NO
travel-1976-	travel	110
Cigar case-bearer	Cigar casebearer	VEC
		YES
Cirby Creek (Calif.)	Cirby Creek (Placer County,	NO
GI G 1 (G-1)	Calif.)	
Clear Creek (Colo.)	Clear Creek (Clear Creek	NO
ON ACICE ACICE	County, Colo.)	
Coastal flora	Coastal plants	YES
Coins, Georgian (Georgian	Coins, Georgian	YES
S.S.R.)	(Transcaucausian)	
Collective bargaining-	Collective bargaining-	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Hotels	
Collective labor agreements-	Collective labor agreements-	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Hotels	
College students-Library	Library orientation for	YES
orientation	college students	
Colorado-Description and	Colorado-Description and	NO
travel-To 1876	travel	
Colorado-Description and	Colorado-Description and	NO
travel-1876-1950	travel	1.0
Colorado-Description and	Colorado-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	1.0
Colorado-Description and	Colorado-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	NO
Havor-1701	uavo	

Communication, Primitive	Communication	YES
Composers-Czechoslovakia- Slovak Republic	Composers-Slovakia	
Contact lenses, Hyrdophilic	Soft contact lenses	YES
Contact lenses, Hyrdophilic-	Soft contact lenses-	YES
Disinfection	Disinfection	
Cookery, Georgian (Georgian	Cookery, Georgian	NO
S.S.R.)	(Transcaucasian)	
Cookery, Kirghiz	Cookery, Kyrgyz	NO
Coral reef flora	Coral reef plants	YES
Czechoslovakia-Economic	Czechoslovakia-Economic	NO
conditions-1945-	conditions-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Economic	Czechoslovakia-Economic	NO
conditions-1945	conditions-1945-1992-	
Public opinion	Public opinion	
Czechoslovakia-Economic	Czechoslovakia-Economic	NO
policy-1945-	policy-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Economic	Czechoslovakia-Economic	NO
policy-1989-	policy-1989-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Foreign	Czechoslovakia-Foreign	NO
relations-1945-	relations-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-History-	Czechoslovakia-History	NO
1918-		
Czechoslovakia-History-	Czechoslovakia-History-	NO
1945-	1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-History-	Czechoslovakia-History- 1945-1992	NO
Czechoslovakia-Intellectual	Czechoslovakia-Intellectual	NO
life-1945-	life-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Politics and	Czechoslovakia-Politics and	NO
government-1945-	government-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Politics and	Czechoslovakia-Politics and	NO
government-1989-	government-1989-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Social	Czechoslovakia-Social	NO
conditions-1945-	conditions-1945-1992	
Czechoslovakia-Social	Czechoslovakia-Social	NO
life and customs-1968-	life and customs	
Dagestanskafa A.S.S.R.	Dagestan (Russia)-Languages	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-Languages	Mad dolls 2011 turing D	
Dairy bacteriology	Dairy microbiology	YES
Decoration and ornament,	Decoration and ornament,	YES
Kirghiz	Kyrgyz	
Denmark-Description and travel-1901-1944	Denmark-Description and travel	NO
Denmark-Description and	Denmark-Description and	NO
travel-1945-	travel	
Denmark-Description and	Denmark-Description and	NO
travel-1971-	travel	and man and all
Dictators-Wives	Dictators' wives	YES
Drvar, Battle of, 1944	Drvar (Bosnia and	NO
Divar, Danie OI, 1744	Hercegovina), Battle of, 1944	107 100
Dry Creek (Ga.)	Dry Creek (Early	NO
2., 0.000 (00.)	County-Decatur County, Ga.)	r may
Dunai skie plavni (Ukraine:	Dunai's ki plavni (Ukraine :	NO
Preserve)	Preserve)	1-ley-1
Education, Primitive	Education	YES

Egypt-Description and	Egypt-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	
Egypt-Description and	Egypt-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Egypt-Queens	Queens-Egypt	
Egypt-Queens-Mythology	Queens-Egypt-Mythology	NO
Elbe River (Czechoslovakia and	Elbe River (Czech Republic and	NO
Germany)	Germany)	
Elbe River (Czechoslovakia and	Elbe River (Czech Republic and	NO
Germany)-Bridges	Germany)-Bridges	
Elbe Sandstone Rocks	Elbe Sandstone Rocks (Czech	NO
(Czechoslovakia and Germany)	Republic and Germany)	
Employees' magazines,	Employees' magazines,	YES
handbooks, etc.	newsletters, etc.	
Encyclopedias and	Encyclopedias and	YES
dictionaries, Kirghiz	dictionaries, Kyrgyz	
Engineering students-	Library orientation for	YES
Library orientation	engineering students	120
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-To 1600		NO
	travel-Early works to 1800	210
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-To 1600	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1601-1700	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1601-1700	travel-Early works to 1800	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1701-1800	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1701-1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1801-1900	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1945	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1946-1970	travel	
England-Description and	England-Description and	NO
travel-1971-	travel	
England-Economic conditions-	England-Economic conditions-	NO
Medieval period, 1066-1485	1066-1485	
English literature-Kirghiz	English literature-Kyrgyz	NO
authors		ma microsopsi
Enterotoxemia	Type D enterotoxemia	YES
		YES
Erotic art, Primitive	Erotic art	
Eskar		YES
		YES
Estonia-History-	Estonia-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Estonian language-Dialects- Setu	Setu dialect	YES
Estuarine flora		YES
Ethics, Primitive	Ethics	YES
Ethiopia-Description and		NO
travel-To 1900	travel	
Ethiopia-Description and	Ethiopia-Description and	NO
	travel	

Ethiopia-Description and travel-1945-1980	Ethiopia-Description and travel	NO
Ethiopia-Description and	Ethiopia-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Eumetopias jubata	Steller's sea lion	YES
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-To 1600	travel-Early works to 1800	
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-To 1600	travel	and the same t
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-17th century	travel-Early works to 1800	staGL-sector19
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-17th century	travel	Dente Dance
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-18th century	travel	- III - TODAY
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-18th century	travel-Early works to 1800	7.0
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
		NO
travel-1800-1918	travel	NO
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-1919-1944	travel	***
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1970	travel	
Europe-Description and	Europe-Description and	NO
travel-1971-	travel	11 100 110
Europe, Northern-	Europe, Northern-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel-	
1701-1800	Early works to 1800	
Europe, Northern-	Europe, Northern-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1701-1800		
Europe, Northern-	Europe, Northern-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1981-		
Exhibitions-Booths	Exhibit booths	YES
Falashas	Jews, Ethiopian	YES
Falashas (Jewish law)	Jews, Ethiopian	YES
Falashas-Music	Jews-[place]-Music	
Finland-Description and	Finland-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	
Finland-Description and	Finland-Description and	NO
travel-1981-		
Fishes-Effect of water	Fishes-Effect of	
temperature on	temperature on	. 1
Floodplain flora		YES
Florida-Description and	Florida-Description and	NO
travel-To 1865	travel	- H 0151
	Florida-Description and	
Florida-Description and	travel	NO
travel-1865-1950		NO
Florida-Description and		NO
travel-1951-1980		NO
Florida-Description and		NO
travel-1981-	travel	and a series
Food-Bacteriology		YES
Food-Bacteriology-	0,	NO
Laboratory manuals	Laboratory manuals	****
Forest flora	Forest plants	YES

France-Description and travel-To 1600	France-Description and travel-Early works to 1800	NO
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-To 1600	travel	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1600-1799	travel-Early works to 1800	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1600-1799	travel	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1800-1918	travel	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1919-1944	travel	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1974	travel	
France-Description and	France-Description and	NO
travel-1975-	travel	=CI-normal
Freshwater flora	Freshwater plants	YES
Fül, Tall	Fül, Tall (Jordan)	NO
Gayos (Indonesian people)	Gayo (Indonsian people)	YES
Gayos (Indonesian people)-	Gayo (Indonsian people)-	NO
Marriage customs and rites	Marriage customs and rites	
Gayos (Indonesian people)-	Gayo (Indonsian people)-	NO
Rites and ceremonies	Rites and ceremonies	
Geology-United States-	Geological surveys-United	
Surveys	States	
Geometry, Differential-	Projective differential	NO
Projective	geometry	
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1775	travel-Early works to 1800	
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1775	travel	
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1950	travel-Early works to 1800	140
		NO
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1950	travel	AMULINOITES
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
Georgia-Description and	Georgia-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Government vessels-United	Government vessels-	
States-Inspection		
Governors-Children		YES
Governors-New York (State)-	Children of governors-New	
Children	York (State)	
Governors-United States-	Children of governors-	
Children	~~ 1. 1 ~	
Grain-louse	Greenbug	YES
Grain-louse-Biological		YES
control	avail and a second	
Grain-louse-Control	Greenbug-Control	YES
Great Britain-Description		NO
and travel-To 1600	and travel-Early works to	
	1800	
Great Britain-Description	0 . 0 . 1 . 1 . 1 . 1	NO
	and travel	ves in deadly
	en voltadel de de la contra	

Great Britain-Description and travel-1601-1700	Great Britain-Description and travel-Early works to 1800	NO
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1601-1700	and travel	NO
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1701-1800	and travel-Early works to	many desired
and travel-1701-1800	1800	
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1701-1800	and travel	
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1801-1900	and travel	
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1901-1945	and travel	
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1946-1970	and travel	
Great Britain-Description	Great Britain-Description	NO
and travel-1971-	and travel	
Great Britain-Popular	Popular culture-Great	
culture	Britain	
Great Britain-Queens	Queens-Great Britain	
Great Britain-Queens-	Queens-Great Britain-	NO
Autographs	Autographs	
Great Britain-Queens-	Queens-Great Britain-	NO
Juvenile literature	Juvenile literature	
Great Lakes-Temperature	Water temperature-Great	
IND. NO.	Lakes	
Great Lakes-Water level	Water levels-Great Lakes	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-To 323	travel-Early works to 1800	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-To 323	travel	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1453-1820	travel-Early works to 1800	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1453-1820	travel	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1821-1900	travel	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1950	travel	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
Greece-Description and	Greece-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Green Creek (Tex.)	Green Creek (Erath County,	NO
	Tex.)	
Hand stamps (Philately)	Handstamps (Philately)	YES
Hawaii-Description and	Hawaii-Description and	NO
travel-To 1950	travel	
Hawaii-Description and	Hawaii-Description and	NO
	travel	
Hawaii-Description and	Hawaii-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Heads of state-Wives	Wives of heads of state	YES
Hernád River (Czechoslovakia	Hernád River (Slovakia and	NO
and Hungary)	Hungary)	

High school students- Library orientation	Library orientation for high school students	YES
Hot spring flora	Hot spring plants	YES
Hotel bellmen	Bellhops	100000
Hotel doormen		YES
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Hotels	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Bars (Drinking establishments)	-
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Taverns (Inns)	
사 프로젝트 전에 가게 하다 하다 이 아니다면 하게 되었다.	Hotels-Communication	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc		NO
Communication systems		west pass
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Conservation and	
Conservation and restoration	restoration	
Hotels, taverns, etc Decoration	Hotels-Decoration	
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Employees	NO
Employees	brown hose or version in	
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Employees-	YES
Employees-Supplementary employment	Supplementary employment	
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Finance	NO
Finance		
Hotels, taverns, etc		VEC
Finance-Law and legislation	legislation	YES
Hotels, taverns, etcFires	YY-1-1- T' 1 C	No
and fire prevention		NO
	prevention Hotels-Fires and fire	
Hotels, taverns, etcFires		YES
and fire prevention-Law and legislation	prevention-Law and legislation	
Hotels, taverns, etc	** . 1 **	NO
Furniture, equipment, etc.	equipment, etc.	
Hotels, taverns, etcLaw	Hotels-Law and legislation	YES
and legislation	atores Law and logislation	1120
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Maintenance and	NO
Maintenance and repair	repair	NO
Hotels, taverns, etc		NO
Personnel management	Hotels-Fersonner management	NO
Hotels, taverns, etcPet	Hotels-Pet accommodations	270
accommodations		NO
		I-bylli
Hotels, taverns, etc		NO
Reservation systems Hotels, taverns, etcRisk	Hetels Biels management	
management	Hotels-Risk management	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Terminology	NO
Terminology	In-rich	
Hotels, taverns, etcChina	Hotels-China	
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Pennsylvania	
Pennsylvania	and the second s	
Québec (Province)		
Hotels, taverns, etcTexas	Uotola Toyon	
Hotels, taverns, etc	Hotels-Washington (D.C.)	
Washington (D.C.)		
Hotels, taverns, etc., in	Hotels in literature	NO
literature	mod 10 mi/23/	
	Books of hours	YES
Hungary-Description and	TT D	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	NO

Hungary-Description and travel-1981-	Hungary-Description and travel	NO
fAkutskaia A.S.S.R.	Yakutia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History	Takuta (Russia) Tilstory	
Akutskaia A.S.S.R.	Yakutia (Russia)-History	NO
	Takutta (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-		
Revolution of 1905	DOMESTICE TO A TO	tioned light
Akutskaia A.S.S.R.	Russia-History-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Revolution of 1905		
Akutskaia A.S.S.R.	Yakutia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-		
Revolution, 1917-1921		
ÎAkutskaia A.S.S.R.	Soviet Union-History-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	Revolution, 1917-1921	
Revolution, 1917-1921		
fAroslavl' (fAroslavskaia	fAroslavl' (fAroslavskaia	NO
oblast', R.S.F.S.R.)-	oblast', Russia)-History	
History	Person to a result of the contract of the cont	
[Aroslavl' ([Aroslavskaia	fAroslavl' (fAroslavskaia	NO
oblast', R.S.F.S.R.)-	oblast', Russia)-History	
History-Revolution,	outst , Russia, mistory	
1917-1921		
	Soviet Union History	NO
Aroslavl' (Aroslavskaia	Soviet Union-History-	NO
oblast', R.S.F.S.R.)-	Revolution, 1917-1921	
History-Revolution,		
1917-1921	Maria Line 1 - 3	The second
Ice-Bacteriology	Ice-Microbiology	YES
Iceland-Description and	Iceland-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	
Iceland-Description and	Iceland-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Illinois-Description and	Illinois-Description and	NO
travel-To 1865	travel	
Illinois-Description and	Illinois-Description and	NO
travel-1865-1950	travel	
Illinois-Description and	Illinois-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
Illinois-Description and	Illinois-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	I be seed
Illumination of books and	Illumination of books and	YES
manuscripts, Georgian		Lavani
	(Transcaucasian)	
(Georgian s.s.R.)	Imlihiyah, Tall (Iraq)	NO
Imlihiyah, Tall (Egypt)		NO
India-Description and		NO
travel-To 1000	travel-Early works to 1800	A PARTY
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-To 1000	travel	
	India-Description and	NO
travel-1001-1497	travel-Early works to 1800	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1001-1497	travel	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1498-1761	travel-Early works to 1800	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1498-1761	travel	

75 TO THE 9 FOR U	The fact seed of the first of the fact of	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1762-1858	travel-Early works to 1800 India-Description and	NO
India-Description and travel-1762-1858	travel	NO
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1859-1900	travel	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1946	travel	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1947-1980	travel	
India-Description and	India-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Indonesia-Description and	Indonesia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
Indonesia-Description and	Indonesia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel	
Indonesia-Description and	Indonesia-Description and	NO
travel-1800-1945	travel	
Indonesia-Description and	Indonesia-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	***
Indonesia-Description and	Indonesia-Description and	NO
travel-1981- Intercultural education	travel Multicultural education	VEC
Intercultural education-	Multicultural education-	YES
Activity programs	Activity programs	1 ES
Intestines-Inflammation	Inflammatory bowel diseases	YES
Iowa-Description and travel-	Iowa-Description and travel	NO
To 1846	lowa-Description and traver	NO
Iowa-Description and travel-	Iowa-Description and travel	NO
1846-1950		
Iowa-Description and travel- 1951-1980	Iowa-Description and travel	NO
Iowa-Description and travel- 1981-	Iowa-Description and travel	NO
Ipel' River (Czechoslovakia and	Ipel ' River (Slovakia and	NO
Hungary)	Hungary)	
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-To 1700	travel-Early works to 1800	
Ireland-Description and travel-To 1700	Ireland-Description and travel	NO
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-1701-1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-1701-1800	travel	
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-1801-1900	travel	
Ireland-Description and travel-1901-1950	Ireland-Description and travel	NO
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
Ireland-Description and	Ireland-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Irian Jaya (Indonesia)-	Irian Jaya (Indonesia)-	NO
Description and travel-To 1963	Description and travel	

Irian Jaya (Indonesia)- Description and travel- 1963-	Irian Jaya (Indonesia)- Description and travel	NO
Island flora	Island plants	YES
	Italy-Description and	NO
Italy-Description and	travel-Early works to 1800	110
travel-To 1500		NO
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-To 1500	travel	110
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1501-1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1501-1800	travel	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1801-1860	travel	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1861-1900	travel	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1944	travel	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1974	travel	
Italy-Description and	Italy-Description and	NO
travel-1975-	travel	
Ngo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia	South Ossetia (Georgia)-	NO
		110
oblast (Georgian s.s.r.)-	History	
History	South Ossatia (Coorgia)	NO
fUgo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia	South Ossetia (Georgia)-	NO
oblast' (Georgian s.s.r.)-	History	
History-Revolution of 1905	(best TAX	I - New York
fUgo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia	Georgia (Republic)-History-	NO
oblast' (Georgian s.s.r.)-	Revolution, 1905-1907	
History-Revolution of 1905		
fUgo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia	South Ossetia (Georgia)-	NO
oblast' (Georgian s.s.r.)-	History	
History-Revolution,		
1917-1921		
ſUgo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia	Georgia (Republic)-History-	NO
oblast' (Georgian s.s.R.)-	Revolution, 1917-1921	
History-Revolution,	nmiH-ciemi 2154	
1917-1921		
fUzhnyi Bug River (Ukraine)	Southern Bug River (Ukraine)	NO
fUzhnyi Bug River Estuary	Southern Bug River Estuary	NO
(Ukraine)	(Ukraine)	
Ivories, Primitive	Ivories	YES
		NO
Jamaica-Description and	Jamaica-Description and	
travel-1951-	and travel	NO
Jamaica-Description and	Jamaica-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	THE THEFT
Jamaica-Description and	Jamaica-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	and thinks
Japan-Description and	Japan-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
Japan-Description and	Japan-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel	
Japan-Description and	Japan-Description and	NO
travel-1801-1900	travel	
	Torres December and	NO
Japan-Description and	Japan-Description and	NO

Japan-Description and travel-1945-	Japan-Description and travel	NO
Japan-Foreign relations- 1945-	Japan-Foreign relations- 1945-1989	NO
Japan-Foreign relations- 1945-	Japan-Foreign relations- 1989-	NO
Japan-Popular culture	Popular culture-Japan	
Japan-Popular culture-	Popular culture-Japan-	NO
Zen influences	Zen influences	
Javanese	Javanese (Indonesian people)	YES
Javanese-Marriage customs	Javanese (Indonesian people)-	NO
and rites	Marriage customs and rites	
Javanese-Rites and	Javanese (Indonesian people)-	NO
ceremonies	Rites and ceremonies	
Jewelry, Primitive	Jewelry	YES
Judaism and democracy	Democracy-Religious aspects-	NO
Judaishi and democracy	Judaism	110
Kála-azár	Kala-azar	YES
Kalmytskaia A.s.s.R.	Kalmykia (Russia)	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)	Kaililykia (Kussia)	NO
Kalmytskaia A.S.S.R.	Kalmykia (Russia)-	NO
	Civilization	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-Civilization		*****
Kannada language-Dialects- Gowda	Gowda dialect	YES
Kansas-Description and	Kansas-Description and	NO
travel-To 1861	travel	
Kansas-Description and	Kansas-Description and	NO
travel-1861-1950	travel	
Kansas-Description and travel-1951-1980	Kansas-Description and travel	NO
Kansas-Description and	Kansas-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Karel 'skaia A.S.S.R.	Karelia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History		
Karel skaia A.S.S.R.	Karelia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-		
Revolution of 1905		
Karel 'skaia A.S.S.R.	Russia-History-Revolution,	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	1905-1907	110
Revolution of 1905	1903 1907	
Karel skaia A.S.S.R.	Karelia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	Raicia (Russia)-Ilistory	NO
Revolution, 1917-1921		
Karel 'skaia A.S.S.R.	Soviet Union Wiston	NO
	Soviet Union-History-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	Revolution, 1917-1921	
Revolution, 1917-1921	77	
Kirghiz drama	Kyrgyz drama	YES
Kirghiz fiction	Kyrgyz fiction	YES
Kirghiz language	Kyrgyz language	YES
Kirghiz literature		YES
Kirghiz philology	Kyrgyz philology	YES
Kirghiz poetry	7 67 1	YES
Kirghiz prose literature	Kyrgyz prose literature	YES
Komi A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)-	Komi (Russia)-History	NO
History		

Komi A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)- History-Revolution,	Komi (Russia)-History	NO
1917-1921		
Komi A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)- History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Soviet Union-History- Revolution, 1917-1921	NO
Korea-Description and travel-To 1900	Korea-Description and travel	NO
Korea-Description and travel-1901-1947	Korea-Description and travel	NO
Korucutepe Site (Turkey)	Korucu Tepe (Turkey)	NO
Krivoi Rog Basin (Ukraine)	Kryvyi Rih Basin (Ukraine)	NO
Lake flora	Lake plants	YES
Lakes-Temperature	Water temperature	YES
Landscape painting, Kirghiz	Landscape painting, Kyrgyz	YES
Laos-Description and travel- 1975-	Laos-Description and travel	NO
Larch	Larches	YES
Larch-Diseases and pests	Larches-Diseases and pests	YES
Larch case-bearer	Larch casebearer	YES
Latgale (Latvia)-History- Revolution of 1905	Latgale (Latvia)-History	NO
Latgale (Latvia)-History-	Latvia-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Latvia-History-	Latvia-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Leishman-Donovan bodies	Amastigotes	YES
Lezghian language	Lezgian language	YES
Lezghian literature	Lezgian literature	YES
Lezghian poetry	Lezgian poetry	YES
Lezghian prose literature	Lezgian prose literature	YES
Lezghians	Lezgians	YES
Lithuania-History-Revolution of 1905	Lithuania-History-Revolution, 1905-1907	NO
Little Alföld (Hungary and Czechoslovakia)	Little Alföld (Hungary and Slovakia)	NO
Livestock-Diseases- Chemotherapy	Veterinary chemotherapy	YES
Louisiana-Description and	Louisiana-Description and	NO
travel-To 1803	travel-Early works to 1800	
Louisiana-Description and travel-To 1803	Louisiana-Description and travel	NO
Louisiana-Description and travel-1803-1865	Louisiana-Description and travel	NO
Louisiana-Description and travel-1865-1950	Louisiana-Description and travel	NO
Louisiana-Description and travel-1951-1980	Louisiana-Description and travel	NO
Louisiana-Description and travel-1981-	Louisiana-Description and travel	NO
Luminescent postage-stamps	Luminescent postage stamps	YES
Madrigal	Madrigals-History and criticism	NO
Madrigals (Music)	Madrigals	YES
Madrigals (Music), English	Madrigals, English	YES
Madrigals (Music), Hungarian	Madrigals, Hungarian	YES
Madrigals (Music), Italian	Madrigals, Italian	YES

Madrigals (Music), Latin	Madrigals, Latin	YES
Madrigals (Music), Portuguese	Madrigals, Portuguese	YES
Madrigals (Music), Spanish	Madrigals, Spanish	YES
Maquis flora	Maquis plants	YES
Marine flora	Marine plants	YES
Marine sediments-	Marine sediments-	YES
Bacteriology	Microbiology	
Maritime postal hand stamps	Maritime postal handstamps	YES
Marsh flora	Marsh plants	YES
Marshes, Tide	Salt marshes	YES
Marshes, Tide-California	Salt marshes-California	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-To 1775	travel-Early works to 1800	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-To 1775	travel	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1865	travel	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1865	travel-Early works to 1800	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-1865-1950	travel	
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	1,0
Maryland-Description and	Maryland-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	110
Meat-Bacteriology	Meat-Microbiology	YES
Michigan, Lake-Water	Water diversion-Michigan,	1123
diversion	Lake	
	Milk-Microbiology	YES
Milk-Bacteriology		
Minnesota-Description and travel-To 1858	Minnesota-Description and	NO
	Minnesota Description and	NO
Minnesota-Description and	Minnesota-Description and	NO
travel-1858-1950	travel	
Minnesota-Description and	Minnesota-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	1-50 = 50, U.S.
Minnesota-Description and	Minnesota-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Monasticism and religious	Monasticism and religious	NO
orders-Liturgy and ritual	orders-Liturgy	
Montenegro-Description and	Montenegro-Description and	NO
travel-To 1918	travel	
Montenegro-Description and	Montenegro-Description and	NO
travel-1918-1980	travel	
Montenegro-Description and	Montenegro-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Moor flora	Moor plants	YES
Moscow (Russia)-History-	Moscow (Russia)-History-	NO
Revolution, 1905-1907	1905-1907	
Mouth-Sepsis	Oral sepsis	YES
Muskeg flora	Muskeg plants	YES
Mythology, Kirghiz	Mythology, Kyrgyz	YES
Netherlands-Description and	Netherlands-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1977	travel	
Netherlands-Description and	Netherlands-Description and	NO
travel-1978-	travel	
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-To 1775	travel-Early works to 1800	11 - 61 - 4
114101-10 1773	Have Barry Works to 1000	

New England-Description and travel-To 1775	New England-Description and travel	NO
		NO
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1865	travel	
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-1775-1865	travel-Early works to 1800	
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-1865-1950	travel	
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
		NO
New England-Description and	New England-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
New Zealand-Description and	New Zealand-Description and	NO
travel-To 1840	travel	
New Zealand-Description and	New Zealand-Description and	NO
travel-1840-1950	travel	
New Zealand-Description and	New Zealand-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	
		NO
New Zealand-Description and	New Zealand-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Northwest Territories-	Northwest Territories-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1981-		
Northwest, Canadian-	Northwest, Canadian-	NO
Description and travel-To	Description and travel	
1821		
	Northwest, Canadian-	NO
Northwest, Canadian-		NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1821-1867		
Northwest, Canadian-	Northwest, Canadian-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1867-1950		
Northwest, Canadian-	Northwest, Canadian-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1951-1980	Description and naver	
	Nasharat Canadian	NO
Northwest, Canadian-	Northwest, Canadian-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1981-		
Norway-Description and	Norway-Description and	NO
travel-1945-	travel	
Norway-Description and	Norway-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	
	Norway-Description and	NO
Norway-Description and	The state of the s	110
travel-1981-	travel	***
Numbers, Transfinite	Transfinite numbers	NO
O'Donnell, Peter	O'Donnell, Peter, 1921-	NO
O'Donnell, Peter-Characters-	O'Donnell, Peter, 1921	NO
Modesty Blaise	Characters-Modesty Blaise	
Occupation postage stamps	Occupation stamps	YES
Odessa, Battle of, 1941	Odesa (Ukraine), Battle of,	NO
Odessa, Battle of, 1941		1,0
01 01 01011	1941	NO.
Odessa, Battle of, 1944	Odesa (Ukraine), Battle of,	NO
and the second called	1944	
Odessa Bay (Ukraine)	Odesa Bay (Ukraine)	NO
Odesskaia oblast' (Ukraine)-	Odes'ka oblast' (Ukraine)-	NO
History	History	

Odesskala oblast' (Ukraine)- History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Odes 'ka oblast' (Ukraine)- History	NO
Odesskafa oblast' (Ukraine)-	Ukraine-History-	NO
History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Revolution, 1917-1921	
One-man companies	One-person corporations	YES
Orange Free State (South Africa)-Description and travel-To 1854	Orange Free State (South Africa)-Description and travel	NO
Oratory, Primitive	Oratory	YES
Owl Creek (Wyo.)	Owl Creek (Hot Springs County, Wyo.)	NO
Painting, Kirghiz	Painting, Kyrgyz	YES
Painting, Primitive	Painting	YES
Painting, Primitive- Australia	Painting-Australia	
Pam'îatnyk T. H. Shevchenku v	Pam'iatnyk T. H. Shevchenku v	NO
Kharkovi (Kharkov, Ukraine)	Kharkovi (Kharkiv, Ukraine)	
Pecan cigar case-bearer	Pecan cigar casebearer	YES
Pelota (Game)	Jai alai	YES
Pelota (Game)-Betting	Jai alai-Betting	YES
Pelota (Game)-Law and	Jai alai-Law and	YES
legislation	legislation	
Pelota players	Jai alai players	YES
Personnel procedure manuals	Personnel management- Handbooks, manuals, etc.	NO
Philatelic agencies	Stamp collecting-Societies, etc.	NO
Philippines-Description and travel-1975-	Philippines-Description and travel	NO
Philosophy, Jaina	Jaina philosophy	NO
Philosophy, Kirghiz	Philosophy, Kyrgyz	NO
P'illyul	P'iri	YES
P'illyul music	P'iri music	NO
Planetaria	Planetariums	YES
Plate blocks (Postage-stamps)	Plate blocks (Postage stamps)	YES
Plate numbers (Postage-stamps)	Plate numbers (Postage stamps)	YES
Playhouses, Children's	Children's playhouses	YES
Podolia (Ukraine)	Podillia (Ukraine)	NO
Poland-Description and travel-1901-1944	Poland-Description and travel	NO
Poland-Description and travel-1945-1980	Poland-Description and travel	NO
Poland-Description and travel-1981-	Poland-Description and travel	NO
Poland-History-	Poland-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Poland-History-	Poland-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905-Personal narratives	Revolution, 1905-1907- Personal narratives	
Pond flora	Pond plants	YES
Postage-stamps	Postage stamps	YES
Postage-stamps-Booklets	Postage stamp booklets	YES
Postage-stamps-Catalogs	Postage stamps-Catalogs	NO
Postage-stamps-Collectors and collecting	Stamp collecting	YES

Postage-stamps-Color	Postage stamps-Color	NO
Postage-stamps-Dealers	Postage-stamp dealers	YES
Postage-stamps-Expertising	Postage stamps-Expertising	NO
Postage-stamps-Flaws	Postage stamps-Flaws	YES
Postage-stamps-Forgeries	Postage stamps-Forgeries	YES
Postage-stamps-Margins	Postage stamps-Margins	YES
Postage-stamps-Miniature sheets	Postage stamps-Miniature sheets	YES
Postage-stamps-Topics- Canada	Canada-On postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Centennial celebrations	Stamp centenaries on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Dancing	Dancing on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Flags	Flags on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics-	Holocaust, Jewish	NO
Holocaust, Jewish (1939-1945)	(1939-1945), on postage stamps	
Postage-stamps-Topics- Jews	Jews on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics-	Kings and rulers on postage	NO
Kings and rulers	stamps	
Postage-stamps-Topics- Literature	Authors on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Pais Vasco (Spain)	Pais Vasco (Spain)-On postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Physicians	Physicians on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Portraits	Portraits on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Refugees	Refugees on postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Romania	Romania-On postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics- Soviet Union	Soviet Union-On postage stamps	NO
Postage-stamps-Topics-	Telecommunication on postage	NO
Telecommunication	stamps	
Postage-stamps-Topics-	Washington, George, 1732-1799-	NO
Washington, George, 1732-1799 Postage-stamps-Great Britain	On postage stamps Postage stamps-Great Britain	
Postage-stamps-Great	Postage stamps-Great	NO
Britain-Colonies	Britain-Colonies	110
Postage-stamps-United States	Postage stamps-United States	
Postage-stamps, Local	Local stamps	YES
Postage-stamps as an investment	Postage stamps as an investment	YES
Postage-stamps in education	Postage stamps in education	NO
Postal service-Rates	Postal rates	YES
Pottery, Georgian (Georgian s.s.r.)	Pottery, Georgian (Transcaucasian)	YES
Prairie flora	Prairie plants	YES
Preaching, Buddhist	Buddhist preaching	YES
Preaching, Buddhist-History	Buddhist preaching-History	NO
Preaching, Extemporaneous	Extemporaneous preaching	YES

Preaching, Islamic	Islamic preaching	YES
Preaching, Jewish	Jewish preaching	YES
Preaching, Lay	Lay preaching	YES
Preaching, Methodist	Methodist preaching	YES
Presidents-Children	Children of presidents	YES
Presidents-Wives	Presidents' wives	YES
Presidents-United States-	Children of presidents-	
Children	United States	
Presidents-United States- Wives	Presidents' wives-United States	
Pressure probe (Meteorological instrument)	Static pressure probes	YES
Priests, Buddhist-Wives	Buddhist priests' wives	YES
Prints, Kirghiz	Prints, Kyrgyz	YES
Provisionals (Postage-stamps)	Provisionals (Postage stamps)	YES
Public relations-Hotels, taverns, etc.	Public relations-Hotels	YES
Pydna (Greece), Battle of, 168	Pydna (Extinct city), Battle	NO
B.C.	of, 168 B.C.	
Railroad flora	Railroad plants	YES
Railroads-Baggage	Railroads-Baggage handling	YES
Railroads-Hump yards	Hump yards	YES
Railroads-Pullman cars	Pullman cars	YES
Railroads-Roundhouses	Roundhouses (Railroads)	YES
Railroads-Sidings	Railroad sidings	YES
Railroads-Sidings-Law and legislation	Railroad sidings-Law and legislation	YES
Railroads-Sleeping cars	Sleeping cars (Railroads)	YES
Recovery room (Surgery)	Recovery rooms	YES
Redwood Creek (Calif.)	Redwood Creek (Humboldt County, Calif.)	NO
Reservoir flora	Reservoir plants	YES
Reservoirs-Temperature	Water temperature	YES
Riparian flora	Riparian plants	YES
Rivers-Temperature	Water temperature	YES
Roadside flora	Roadside plants	YES
Romania-Description and travel-1945-1977	Romania-Description and travel	NO
Romania-Description and	Romania-Description and	NO
travel-1978-	travel	
Ruderal flora	Ruderal plants	YES
Saint Petersburg (Russia)-	Saint Petersburg (Russia)-	NO
History-Revolution, 1905-1907	History-1905-1907	
Salt-Bacteriology	Halobacterium	YES
Sand dune flora	Sand dune plants	YES
Saratov (R.S.F.S.R.)- History	Saratov (Russia)-History	NO
Saratov (R.S.F.S.R.)-	Soviet Union-History-	NO
History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Revolution, 1917-1921	
Saratov (R.S.F.S.R.)-	Saratov (Russia)-History	NO
History-Revolution, 1917-1921	almit per tage." Only analytical and a second	
Scandinavia-Description and	Scandinavia-Description and	NO
travel-1945-1980	travel	

Scandinavia-Description and travel-1981-	Scandinavia-Description and travel	NO
	Schaffer Job Satisfaction Test	VEC
Schaffer job satisfaction test		YES
School children-Library	Library orientation for school	YES
orientation	children	Int Sort
Science-Translating services	Science-Translating	NO
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel-Early works to 1800	
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-To 1800	travel	
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-1801-1900	travel	
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-1901-1950	travel	
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980	travel	Olera
Scotland-Description and	Scotland-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	1.0
Sculpture, Kirghiz	Sculpture, Kyrgyz	YES
Semang dialects	Semang languages	YES
Serbia-Description and	Serbia-Description and	NO
travel-1945-	travel	110
Sevastopol, Battle of, 1944	Sevastopol' (Ukraine), Battle	NO
Sevasiopoi, Baille oi, 1944	of, 1944	NO IN
Shan (Burmese people)	Shan (Asian people)	YES
Short stories, Kirghiz	Short stories, Kyrgyz	YES
Siberia (Russia)-	Siberia (Russia)-	NO
Description and travel- 1801-1944	Description and travel	
Siberia (Russia)-	Siberia (Russia)-	NO
Description and travel-	Description and travel	
1945-1980	iswer bits.	arr Min
Siberia (Russia)-	Siberia (Russia)-	NO
Description and travel- 1981-	Description and travel	
Siberia (Russia)-	Siberia (Russia)-	NO
Description and travel-To 1800	Description and travel	
Siberia (Russia)-	Siberia (Russia)-	NO
Description and travel-To	Description and travel-	call bu
1800	Early works to 1800	
Sicily (Italy)-Description		NO
and travel-To 1900	and travel	
Sicily (Italy)-Description	Sicily (Italy)-Description	NO
and travel-1901-1945	and travel	- 157 Jul
Sicily (Italy)-Description	Sicily (Italy)-Description	NO
and travel-1946-1980	and travel	
Sicily (Italy)-Description	Sicily (Italy)-Description	NO
and travel-1981-	and travel	45.00
Slovak Republic	Slovakia	NO
(Czechoslovakia)	DATE OF THE PARTY	
Slovak Republic	Slovakia-History	NO
(Czechoslovakia)-History	JAV TANIM ANDOWA J	1.0
Slovak Republic	Slovakia-History-	NO
(Czechoslovakia)-History-	1918-1993	.10
1918-		

Slovak Republic (Czechoslovakia)-History- 1918-	Slovakia-History-1993-	NO
Slovak Republic	Slovakia-History-	NO
(Czechoslovakia)-History- Intervention, 1968	Intervention, 1968	Statistics
Slovak Republic	Slovakia-History-	NO
(Czechoslovakia)-History-	Uprising, 1848-1849	110
Uprising, 1848-1849	must hvan 17 if	
Slovak Republic	Slovakia-History-	NO
(Czechoslovakia)-History- Uprising, 1944	Uprising, 1944	
Slovenia-Description and	Slovenia-Description and	NO
travel-To 1918	travel	
Slovenia-Description and travel-1918-1980	Slovenia-Description and travel	NO
Slovenia-Description and	Slovenia-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	NO
Social sciences-Information	Social sciences-Information	NO
		NO
services-Utilization	services-Use studies	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-To 1800	and travel-Early works to 1800	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-To 1800	and travel	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-1801-1900	and travel	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-1901-1950	and travel	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-1951-1965	and travel	
South Africa-Description	South Africa-Description	NO
and travel-1966-	and travel	
South River (N.C.)	South River (Carteret County, N.C.)	NO
Soviet Union-Description	Soviet Union-Description	NO
and travel-1917-1944	and travel	Acc. 95 ab - 2
Soviet Union-Description	Soviet Union-Description	NO
and travel-1945-1969	and travel	1778.7
Soviet Union-Description	Soviet Union-Description	NO
and travel-1970-1991	and travel	1.0
Spring flora	Spring plants	YES
Strikes and lockouts-	Strikes and lockouts-Hotels	YES
Hotels, taverns, etc.	Strikes and rockouts-froters	113
Study, Method of	Study skills	YES
Subject headings-	Subject headings-Postage	
Postage-stamps	stamps	NO
Sufism-Prayer-books and	Sufism-Prayer-books and	NO
devotions, etc.	devotions	NO
Sun-dance	Sun dance	VES
	Surinam-Description and	YES
Surinam-Description and travel-1951-	travel	NO
Surinam-Description and	Surinam-Description and	NO
travel-1951-1980 Surinam-Description and	travel Surinam-Description and	

Sweden-Description and travel-1945-1980	Sweden-Description and travel	NO
Sweden-Description and travel-1981-	Sweden-Description and travel	NO
Switzerland-Description and travel-1945-1980	Switzerland-Description and travel	NO
Switzerland-Description and travel-1981-	Switzerland-Description and travel	NO
Tabernacle (Church furniture)	Tabernacles (Church furniture)	YES
Taiwan-Description and travel-To 1944	Taiwan-Description and travel	NO
Taiwan-Description and travel-1945-1974	Taiwan-Description and travel	NO
Taiwan-Description and travel-1975-	Taiwan-Description and travel	NO
Tatarskaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)-History	Tatarstan (Russia)-History	NO
Tatarskaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)-History- Revolution, 1917-1921	Tatarstan (Russia)-History	NO
Tatarskaia A.S.S.R.	Soviet Union-History-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History- Revolution, 1917-1921	Revolution, 1917-1921	
Technology-Translating services	Technology-Translating	NO
Telugu language-Dialects- Merolu	Merolu dialect	YES
Terezín (Czechoslovakia : Concentration camp)	Terezín (Czech Republic : Concentration camp)	NO
Thailand-Description and travel-1951-1975	Thailand-Description and travel	NO
Thailand-Description and travel-1976-	Thailand-Description and travel	NO
Tiahuanaco culture	Tiwanaku culture	YES
Tiahuanaco Site (Bolivia)	Tiwanaku Site (Bolivia)	NO
Tidemarsh ecology	Salt marsh ecology	YES
Tidemarsh fauna	Salt marsh fauna	YES
Tidemarsh flora	Salt marsh plants	YES
Tillya-tepe Site (Afghanistan)	Tillya Tepe (Afghanistan)	NO
Tokaj-Eperjes Mountains (Czechoslovakia and Hungary)	Tokaj-Eperjes Mountains (Hungary and Czechoslovakia)	NO
Toys, Mechanical	Mechanical toys	YES
Trade unions-Hotels, taverns, etc.	Trade unions-Hotel employees	YES
Transbaikalia (R.S.F.S.R.)	Transbaikalia (Russia)	NO
Transbaikalia (R.S.F.S.R.)- History	Transbaikalia (Russia)- History	NO
Transbaikalia (R.S.F.S.R.)- History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Transbaikalia (Russia)- History	NO
Transbaikalia (R.S.F.S.R.)- History-Revolution, 1917-1921	Soviet Union-History- Revolution, 1917-1921	NO
Transportation, Primitive	Transportation	YES
Transvaal (South Africa)- Description and travel-To	Transvaal (South Africa)- Description and travel	NO
1910 Tundra flora	Tundra plants	YES

Turkey-Description and	Turkey-Description and	NO
travel-1960-1980	travel	
Turkey-Description and	Turkey-Description and	NO
travel-1981-	travel	
Turkey-Foreign relations- 1960-	Turkey-Foreign relations- 1960-1980	NO
Turkey-Foreign relations-	Turkey-Foreign relations-	NO
Üçtepe Mound (Turkey)	Üç Tepe (Turkey)	NO
Udmurtskaia A.S.S.R.	Udmurtia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History	Storm at 1	
Udmurtskaia A.S.S.R.	Udmurtia (Russia)-History	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	19807	
Revolution, 1917-1921		
Udmurtskaia A.S.S.R.	Soviet Union-History-	NO
(R.S.F.S.R.)-History-	Revolution, 1917-1921	
Revolution, 1917-1921		
Ukraine-History-	Ukraine-History-	NO
Revolution of 1905	Revolution, 1905-1907	
Ungas	Unga (African people)	YES
United Nations-	United Nations-Postage	NO
Postage-stamps	stamps	
United States-Popular	Popular culture-United	
culture	States	
United States-Social life and	United States-Social life	NO
customs-Colonial period, ca.	and customs-To 1775-	
1600-1775-Juvenile literature	Juvenile literature	
United States-Social life and	United States-Social life	NO
customs-Colonial period, ca.	and customs-To 1775-	
1600-1775-Pictorial works	Pictorial works	
United States. Army-Drill	United States. Army-Drill	NO
manuals	and tactics-Handbooks,	
VI-in-d Control No.	manuals, etc.	
United States. Navy-	Untied States. Navy-	NO
Artificers' handbooks	Handbooks, manuals, etc.	
United States. Navy- Artificers' handbooks	Naval artificers-Handbooks,	NO
	manuals, etc.	
United States. Navy-Drill manuals	United States. Navy-Drill	NO
manuais	and tactics-Handbooks,	
Urban flora	manuals, etc. Urban plants	1100
Urubu Indians	Urubu Kaapor Indians	YES
Veld flora	Veld plants	NO
Vice-Presidents-United	Vice-Presidents' wives-	YES
States-Wives	United States	
Victoria, Lake-Water level	Water levels-Victoria, Lake	
The District of the District o		
Village Creek (Ark.)	Village Creek (Randolph County-Jackson County, Ark.)	NO
Wages-Hotels, taverns, etc.	Wages-Hotels	YES
Wages-Hotels, taverns, etc	Wages-Hotels-Law and	YES
Law and legislation	legislation	
Wales-Description and	Wales-Description and	NO
travel-To 1700	travel-Early works to 1800	
Wales-Description and	Wales-Description and	NO
travel-To 1700	travel	

Wales-Description and travel-1801-1950	Wales-Description and travel	NO
Wales-Description and travel-18th century	Wales-Description and travel-Early works to 1800	NO
Wales-Description and travel-18th century	Wales-Description and	NO
Wales-Description and travel-1951-1980	Wales-Description and travel	NO
Wales-Description and travel-1981-	Wales-Description and travel	NO
Water-Bacteriology	Water-Microbiology	YES
Water bloom	Cyanobacterial blooms	YES
Wetland flora	Wetland plants	YES
Zaire-Description and travel-To 1880	Zaire-Description and travel	NO
Zaire-Description and travel-1881-1950	Zaire-Description and travel	NO
Zaire-Description and travel-1951-1980	Zaire-Description and travel	NO
Zaire-Description and travel-1981-	Zaire-Description and travel	NO
Zapadnyi Bug River	Western Bug River	NO
Ziba language	Haya language	YES
Zubaydi, Tall (Egypt)	Zubaydi, Tall (Iraq)	NO

Cancelled Subject Heading	Replacement Name Heading
Abkhazskaia A.S.S.R. (Georgian S.S.R.)	Abkhaziia (Georgia)
Ballots Project	BALLOTS Project
Château Montebello (Québec)	Château Montebello (Hotel)
Chung-shan wen ch'üan pin kuan (China)	Chung-shan wen ch'üan pin kuan (Resort)
CONSER Project	CONSER Program
CONSER Project-Format	CONSER Program
Dagestanskaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)	Dagestan (Russia)
Doonesbury (Comic strip)	Trudeau, G.B., 1948- Doonesbury
Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Program	Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment Program (U.S.)
IAkutskaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)	Yakutia (Russia)
[Aroslavl' ([Aroslavskaia oblast', R.S.F.S.R.)	[Aroslavl' ([Aroslavskaia oblast', Russia)
fUgo-Osetinskaia avtonomnaia oblast' (Georgian s.s.r.)	South Ossetia (Georgia)
Karel 'skaia A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)	Karelia (Russia)
Komi A.S.S.R. (R.S.F.S.R.)	Komi (Russia)
LaTeX (Computer system)	LaTex (Computer file)
Lemon House (Pa.)	Lemon House

Moisture Utilization in Semi-Arid
Tropics: Summer Rainfall
Agriculture Project
Odesskaîa oblast' (Ukraine)
Pakistan Scientific and
Technological Information
Centre Project
Rhodes Tavern (Washington,
D.C.)
Saratov (R.S.F.S.R.)
Tatarskaîa A.S.S.R.
(R.S.F.S.R.)
Udmurtskaîa A.S.S.R.

Moisture Utilization in Semi-arid
Tropics: Summer Rainfall
Agriculture Project
Odes'ka oblast' (Ukraine)
Pakistan Scientific and
Technological Information
Centre
Rhodes Tavern

Saratov (Russia) Tatarstan (Russia)

Udmurtia (Russia)

LC CLASSIFICATION

LC CLASSIFICATION GUIDELINES

At the meeting of the ALCTS CCS Subject Analysis Committee (SAC) at the annual meeting of ALA in New Orleans in June, the need was raised for better guidelines in the Library of Congress classification schedules, particularly directives on where to class comprehensive or interdisciplinary treatments of a topic. The point was made that better guidelines could prevent the classification of similar works in different numbers and could save the time of classifiers. The Library of Congress recognizes the need for better guidelines in the classification schedules and welcomes specific suggestions for areas in which guidelines, notes, or references are needed. Please send suggestions to

Chief, Cataloging Policy and Support Office Library of Congress Washington, D.C. 20540-4305

or by email to cpso@mail.loc.gov. NACO and NCCP libraries should send specific proposals for additions or changes to the LC classification schedules to their LC cooperative team liaisons.

PUBLICATIONS

CATALOGING SERVICE BULLETIN INDEX

Cataloging Service Bulletin Index, #1-60, Summer 1978-Spring 1993, by Nancy B. Olson (ISBN 0-936996-64-1: \$30), is available from Soldier Creek Press, P.O. Box 734, Lake Crystal, Minn. 56055-0734. Standing orders are accepted.